
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 22, 2019 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 22 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 22 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 22 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 22 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 12 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 26 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
Memorial High School 

Central High School 
 

E. STUDENT RECOGNITION 
EMHS Unified Track 

 

F. MINUTES 
October 8, 2019 – Public Work Session Meeting 
October 8, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 

 
G. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2019 – September 30, 2019 

 

 2020 Budget Adoption – The Business Office recommends Board approval of 
the proposed 2020 Budget, 2020 Capital Projects Fund Plan, and 2020 
School Bus Replacement Plan, and other required budget resolutions. 



BOARD AGENDA October 22, 2019 
 
 

2 
   

 Extra Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an 
extra-curricular purchase request. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Monthly Insurance Report 
 

 Recommendation for Bid Award - The Business Office recommends Board 
approval of the Recommendation for Award of the Elkhart High School 
Addition and Renovation Food Service Equipment Bid. 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 7510 – Use of School Facilities and Property - The 

administration presents revisions to Board Policy 7510 – Use of School 
Facilities and Property, as initially presented at the October 8th regular 
meeting. 
 

 Administrative Regulation GDBA-10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule -
The administration presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 
GDBA-10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule, as initially presented at the 

October 8th regular meeting. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Tentative Agreement - Consideration of a tentative agreement with the 

Elkhart Teacher’s Association (ETA) for a new collective bargaining 
agreement. 
 

 Grant – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of a 
grant as recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 

overnight trip requests. 
 

J. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

K. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff  
 

 From Board 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 8, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 

Present: Kellie L. Mullins Rodney J. Dale 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   

Absent: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 

   

ECS Personnel Luis Alvarez Theresa Maier 

Present: Camelia Corona Steven Thalheimer 
 Cindy Gilbert Doug Thorne 
 Maggie Lozano Cheryl Waggoner 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a presentation on the services provided to families in the 
community by the Title I Parent Support Team of Luis Alvarez, Camelia 

Corona, Cindy Gilbert and Theresa Maier.  An update on the improvements 
to the application and on-board process was presented by Cheryl Waggoner, 
Director of Human Resources, and Maggie Lozano, Assistant Director of 

Human Resources. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:40 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 

 

 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
October 8, 2019 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Douglas K. Weaver Babette S. Boling 
Present: Kellie L. Mullins Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

   
Absent: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 
  Rodney J. Dale 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Doug Weaver called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Tony England, Assistant Superintendent of Student Services, recited the 
Elkhart Promise. 

 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Weaver discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 
introduced themselves: Elizabeth Weimer, a senior from Memorial High 
School (MHS) and Juan Resendiz, a senior from Central High School 

(CHS).  Ms. Weimer reported Fall sports are entering sectionals and 
volleyball senior night will be the final game of the season against 
Central.  In music, the choral department’s annual fall concert was last 

week; the orchestra is preparing for their festival on October 16 at 
Memorial; and the marching band has competed in three contests and 
will perform this weekend at the ISSMA invitational at Plymouth.  In 

Central news, Mr. Resendiz reported the Fall play, Crazy Town, will be 
presented November 15 and 16; Central is hosting the boys and girls 
cross country at Oxbow Park on Saturday; the football team is off to 

their best start since 2005; soccer sectionals are underway.  In 
upcoming events: FAFSA night is October 30; powder puff football is at 
Rice Field on November 4; and freshman parent night is November 5. 

 

Superintendent’s 
Student Advisory 
Council 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the minutes of the September 
24, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting. 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$7,879,904.45 as shown on the October 8, 2019, claims listing.  

(Codified File 1920-39) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $500 from Bruce 

and Jane Klonowski to Central’s athletic department; $750 from Modern 
Muscle Car Factory to the Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC) to 
purchase engine parts for the Hot Rodders of Tomorrow program; 700 

backpacks with supplies from WNDU and school supplies from Tenneco 
Automotive and Elkhart General Hospital for distribution through the 
Elkhart Education Foundation schoolhouse supply store; a Blessing 

marching baritone from Jim Grubbs (with a donor value of $750); a 
Lewis violin from Aurora Leon (with a donor value of $400); $500 from 
Welch Packaging Group to the ElkLogics robotics program; $400 from 

NIVA Volleyball Club to Pinewood’s athletic programs; $2,500 from NIVA 
to West Side’s volleyball and athletic programs; an anonymous donation 
of $15,000 to Riverview for the purchase of new basketball backboards 

for the gymnasium; and $25,000 from Bob and Amy Martin and 
$250,000 from Welch Packaging Group to the Engineering, Technology 
and Innovation building fund. 

 

Gift Acceptance 

A public hearing on the 2020 Budget, 2020 Capital Projects Plan and 
2020 School Bus Replacement Plan was opened.  Kevin Scott, chief 

financial officer, reviewed the budget and plans, outlining the changes 
that have taken place in 2019.  Mr. Scott responded to an audience 

question regarding state requirements for the Rainy Day Fund.  Mr. 
Scott also responded to a Board member inquiry regarding the purchase 
of school buses.  With no further comments from the audience, the 

hearing was closed. 
 

Public Hearing 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 

request from Central for a sound system for the tennis courts in the 
amount of $3,431. 
 

Extra Curricular 

Purchases 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1920-40) 
 

Fundraisers 
 

The Board was presented revisions to Board Policy 7510 – Use of School 

Facilities and Property, for initial consideration.  Doug Thorne, district 
counsel/chief of staff, noted revisions to Board Policy 7510 and 
Administrative Regulation GDBA-10 reflect changes due to the 

elimination of the swimming pools. 
 

Board Policy 

7510 
 

The Board was presented revisions to Administrative Regulation GDBA-

10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule for initial consideration. 

Administrative 

Regulation 
GDBA-10 
 

  



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of an Active 
Teacher Grant to the Indiana Retired Teachers Foundation in the amount 

of $304.68 from Pinewood; and a Bullying Prevention: Move2Stand 
grant to United Way of Elkhart County in the amount of $36,334 from 
ECS.  (Codified File 1920-41) 

 

Grant 
Submission 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following overnight trip 
requests: the Air Force ROTC raider team members to travel Camp 

Atterbury, Edinburgh, IN on October 24 – 25, to compete in the Raider 
State Championship meet; and 3 Central choir members to travel to Fort 
Wayne on January 17 – 18, 2020, to practice and perform with the 

Indiana All-State Honor Choir. 
 

Overnight Trip 
Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the October 8, 2019 listings.  (Codified File 1920-42) 
 

Conference 

Leave Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 
Report 

Consent agreements regarding unpaid time for three certified staff 
members.  (Codified File 1920-43) 

Certified 
Agreements 

 
Retirement of certified staff member, Robert Bailey, collision repair 
at EACC, effective 1/1/20, with 19 years of service. 

 

Certified 
Retirement 

 
Employment of certified staff member Karina Flores, for the 2019-
2020 school year effective 9/24/19. 

 

Certified 
Employment 

 
Leave for certified staff member, Jami Young, homebound at ESC, 
beginning 8/13/19 and ending 12/20/19. 

 

Certified Leave 
 

Resignation of certified staff member, Amy Saros, speech 
pathologist at Osolo, effective 10/9/19. 

 

Certified 
Resignations 

Employment of the following twenty (20) classified employees 
successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
Leticia Armstrong - paraprofessional at Memorial, 10/8/19 
Carina Barron Alvino - secretary at Hawthorne, 9/26/19 

Caddabra Brown Nee Bernard - psychologist intern at ECS, 
10/7/19 

Cesilia Celestino - paraprofessional at Eastwood, 10/8/19 

Man Ting Choi - psychologist intern at ECS, 10/7/19 
Emma Confer - food service at West Side, 10/7/19 
Sarah Drabyn - therapist at Cleveland, 10/8/19 

Sharon Garcia - food service at Central, 10/7/19 
Evan Hartwig - paraprofessional at Daly, 10/8/19 
Latonya Jennings - food service at West Side, 10/7/19 

Tanya Mead - secretary at West Side, 9/26/19 

Classified 
Employment 



4 
 

Katherine McCraner - paraprofessional at Riverview, 10/8/19 
Victoria Patino - social worker at North Side, 10/7/19 

Shawn Powell - food service at Commissary, 10/7/19 
Stephanie Robbins - secretary at Feeser, 9/26/19 
Mara Scott - paraprofessional at Bristol, 10/8/19 

Benita Shaw - registered nurse at Beardsley, 10/8/19 
Nicole Stutsman - secretary at Eastwood, 9/26/19 
Sonia Thomas - food service at Memorial, 10/7/19 

Caylee Watson - registered nurse at West Side, 10/8/19 
 

Reassignment of classified employee, Jon Chevalier, to Director of 
Transportation, a certified position. 

Classified 
Reassignment 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees, effective 
on dates indicated with years of service in parentheses: 

Kimberly Macon - development manager at WVPE, 

1/3/20 (27) 
Karen Shantz - secretary at ESC, 1/3/20, (11) 
  

Classified 
Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated: 

Brandi Leedy - food service at West Side, 10/10/19 

Thomas Louiselle - bus driver at Transportation, 9/24/19 
Arissa Miller - paraprofessional at Central, 11/1/19 
 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

A teacher in the audience spoke regarding the schedule for 
parent/teacher conferences and the need for more time due to 
class size. 

 

From the 
Audience 

Elkhart Teachers Association president, Kerry Mullet, thanked the 

administration’s bargain team for respectful and professional 
contract negotiations.  Mrs. Mullet also discussed the upcoming 
Indiana Organizational Day on November 19th.  The three topics 

the ETA would like to address while Indianapolis: 1) hold harmless 
regard ILEARN data; 2) repeal the 15 points for externship 
requirement; and 3) distribution of dollars sent to public schools for 

teacher compensation.  There is a possibility of staff shortages on 
that date due to the number of teachers planning to attend. 
 

From the 

Audience 

Superintendent Thalheimer encouraged attendance at the Educating 
Right presentations. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 

  



5 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

Signatures 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Board of School Trustees 

  

 From: Kevin Scott 

 

 Date: October 17, 2019 

 

Subject:  Gift Acceptance 

  

A donation was made to Elkhart Community Schools for renovations to Rice Field and North Side 

Gym in the amount of $25,000: 

 

 Thad and Rachelle Naquin 

 22934 Greenleaf Blvd 

 Elkhart IN  46514 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation be sent. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  October 18, 2019 
 
TO:  Dr. Steven Thalheimer 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Susan Ott 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
Patrick Industries has made a donation in the amount $25,000.00 to Elkhart Community Schools for the 
Engineering, Technology and Innovation building fund. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that appropriate 
letter of acknowledgement be sent to: 
 
 Patrick Industries 
 PO Box 638 
 Elkhart, IN  46515 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  October 11, 2019 

 

TO:  Dr. Steve Thalheimer 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Jacquie Rost, Athletic Director 

   

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the girls/boys track team.  

This donation will go towards the purchase of team sweats, team shirts, shoes, equipment, and other 

miscellaneous costs associated with this program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Cressy & Everett, Inc. Realtors 

332 N. Ironwood Drive 

South Bend, IN 46615 







PETTY CASH $ 500.00                 

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank – Deposit Account 18,109,955.65     
     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (2,168,647.18)      
     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                  -                       
     Teachers Credit Union                                                       2,943,832.55       
     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00          

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:
     Lake City Bank – Prepaid Lunch                                        180,497.63          
     Change Fund            2,010.00              

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 1,861,891.47       

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                      (20,816.12)           
     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                          69,704.36            
     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                       
                                                                                                                            

21,386,348.36$      

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
September 2019







































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 7000 Property

Title Proposed Revised USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY (as presented in the 10/8/2019 BST
meeting)

Code po7510

Status

Adopted November 22, 2016

Last Revised December 18, 2018

Last Reviewed October 22, 2019

7510 - USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY
 
School, School-Related, Community-Sponsored Organizations
 
Included are officially organized groups of Elkhart Community Schools’ students, groups of Elkhart Community Schools’ employees, parent-
teacher groups, other school-sponsored groups, 4-H Club, Future Farmers, Elkhart Education Foundation, Boy and Girl Scouts, and similar
non-sectarian groups.
 

A. The principal of the building gives approval for the building use and schedules the activity. Approval for facility use must be obtained
from the Building Services Office, contingent upon eligibility for use of the facility and the building principal's authorization to schedule
the activity. Use of school facilities by community groups requires at least seventy‑two (72) hours advance notice.
 

B. An Elkhart Community Schools staff member must be present at all times during the use of the building.
 

C. Keys to the building shall be given only to members of the staff, who assume full responsibility for the conduct of the school activity
excluding from the building all who are not a part of the activity, and securing the building at the conclusion of the event (lights turned
off, doors and windows closed and locked, and security system activated).
 

D. The building rental fee may be waived if the activity does not involve an admission charge or a profit-making project and a regular
custodian or authorized school representative is on duty.

Actual building costs will be charged for activities which require an admission charge, are a profit-making project, or a special program
which requires school personnel to be present other than during normal working hours.
 

 
Community Groups - Community Groups such as YWCA, YMCA, NAACP, Black Expo, Tri-Kappa, Hispanic Health Coalition, League of Women
Voters, etc.
 

A. Approval for the use of school facilities is granted under the policies of the Board of School Trustees, and contracting parties shall be
required to sign a waiver and permit as well as and conform to all rules and laws governing the use of public buildings, including the
swimming pools.
 

B. Approval for facility use must be obtained from the Building Services Office, contingent upon eligibility for use of the facility and the
building principal's authorization to schedule the activity. Use of school facilities by community groups requires at least seventy-two
(72) hours' advance notice.
 
Building facilities are available for educational or cultural programs sponsored by community groups and recreational purposes when
such use does not interfere with the school program.
 

C. The schedule for the swimming pools is kept by the Athletic Director/Designee, who confirms all requests for the use of the pool with
the Building Services Office.Fees shall be paid seventy-two (72) hours before the scheduled opening of the facilities unless the
contracting parties have made other arrangements with the Building Services Office. The building use fee covers the use of utilities
and personnel required to supervise the facility. The building principal is responsible for employing the personnel and approving
payment for their services.Elementary gymnasiums are available for use by local, established community groups for basketball or
volleyball Monday through Friday, school days, October 1 - April 30 from 7 to 9:30 p.m. Groups are requested to provide their own
balls and use proper gym shoes. School standards and nets may be used.

 
Park and Recreational Department



 
School buildings and grounds shall be available for use by the Park and Recreation Department, provided such use does not interfere with the
use of the property for school purposes. Fees, to cover the cost of utilities and school personnel required to be on duty, will be determined
per use each year.
 
Churches
 
The Board may rent school facilities to local, established churches during times of expansion or extensive repairs in the congregation's own
facility. The rental may be approved for a period not to exceed six (6) months, after which further emergency rental may be continued with
approval from the Board for a period not to exceed six (6) additional months.
 
Newly formed congregations must give evidence of site purchase, as well as completion date of facility, prior to entering into the six (6)
month agreement.
 
Other
 
The Superintendent may lease school property for purposes authorized under this policy or approved by the Board and shall develop a
schedule of fees for rentals provided such use does not interfere with the use of the property for school purposes.
 
Use of outside areas such as the baseball diamonds, tennis courts, tracks, where no rentals or rental fees are involved, are the responsibility
of the building principal, Athletic Director or Activity Director, who may or may not grant permission to out-of-school groups for use of these
facilities.
 
Restrictions
 
Individuals and organizations may not use school facilities without first submitting a signed waiver or certificate of insurance. The Chief
Operating Officer shall have the authority to determine when  a waiver rather than a certificate of insurance would be required.
 
No person(s) or organization(s) may use any school facilities for personal or corporate financial gain.
 
The use of school facilities by out-of-school groups shall be confined to local, established organizations whose regular meeting place,
headquarters, and principal membership are located within the boundaries of the Elkhart Community Schools District. An "established
organization" is one which has been in existence a minimum of two (2) years, complete with charter and by-laws, and conducts regular
meetings. Such facilities shall be used only for educational, cultural, or recreational purposes. All proceeds shall be devoted to a local public
or charitable purpose, specified in advance of preparation of the rental agreement.
 
School facilities shall not be available for such activities as private parties, weddings, receptions, family reunions, open house receptions,
political fund raising events, funerals, etc.
 
No tobacco or alcohol use is permitted on any Elkhart Community School property.
 
The “use of tobacco” shall mean all uses of tobacco, including a cigar, cigarette, pipe, snuff, or any other matter or substance that contains
tobacco, as well as electronic, “vapor,” or other substitute forms of cigarettes.
 
In order to protect students and staff from the adverse impact of tobacco smoke on indoor air quality and encourage students to not use
tobacco in any form, the Board prohibits the use of tobacco within any facility owned or leased or contracted for by the Board.
 
The Board shall not permit the manufacture, possession, use, distribution, or dispensing of any controlled substance, including alcohol, and
any drug paraphernalia, within any facility owned or leased or contracted for by the Board.
 
Food Service Facilities
 
When food-serving facilities of the schools are used, the user must comply with public health regulations.
 
A food service employee must be in charge of the kitchen and equipment when food is prepared or served.
 
School-related organizations using the cafeteria and facilities for a fund-raising project shall pay for all food and labor costs, including the
food service employee, custodial services, and/or any other expenses incurred by the project.
 
Dinners may be served to school-related groups outside of school hours. The cost of the dinner will be determined by the Director of Food
Services or designee.
 
School cafeterias and kitchens may be used by out-of-school groups when not in competition with established local businesses, in accordance
with all guidelines and fees.
 
Facilities available for Community Use when not required for School Purposes
 
Auditoriums
 
Elkhart Central High School
Elkhart Memorial High School



Elkhart Memorial High School Little Theater
Elkhart Area Career Center Auditorium
 
Cafeterias - Cafetoriums*
 
Elkhart Central High School
Elkhart Memorial High School
Elkhart Area Career Center (Blue Room)
*North Side Middle School
*Pierre Moran Middle School
*West Side Middle School
 
Gymnasiums - All Purpose Rooms*
 
Elkhart Central High School                              Pierre Moran Middle School
Elkhart Memorial High School                           West Side Middle School
North Side Middle School
 
Beardsley Elementary School                            Hawthorne Elementary School
Beck Elementary School                                   Monger Elementary School
*Bristol Elementary School                               Osolo Elementary School
*Cleveland Elementary School                          Pinewood Elementary School
Daly Elementary School                                   Riverview Elementary School
Eastwood Elementary School                            Roosevelt Elementary School
Feeser Elementary School                                Woodland Elementary School
 
Athletic Fields/Elementary Playgrounds (Football, Track, Tennis Courts, Baseball/Softball Diamonds, Elementary Soccer Fields*)
 
Athletic Fields:
 
Elkhart Central High School (with the exception of Rice Field)
Elkhart Memorial High School                                Pierre Moran Middle School
North Side Middle School                                      West Side Middle School
 
Playgrounds:
 
 

Beardsley Elementary School Hawthorne Elementary School
Beck Elementary School Monger Elementary School
Bristol Elementary School Osolo Elementary School
Cleveland Elementary School *Pinewood Elementary School
Daly Elementary School Riverview Elementary School
*Eastwood Elementary School Roosevelt STEAM Academy
*Feeser Elementary School Woodland Elementary School
  

 
Swimming Pools:
Elkhart Central High School
 
Community Use of Equipment
 
Audio-visual, music, industrial arts, and other school equipment may be used by staff members in school-community activities which are
compatible with the interest of Elkhart Community Schools.
 
Loan of equipment to the Park and Recreation Department and school-related organizations may be made when the equipment is not in use
by the school and when it will be used by a trained operator.
 
In all cases, approval for the loan or use of school equipment outside of the regular school program must be obtained from the Building
Services Office and/or the appropriate building principal. The organization requesting the equipment is responsible for picking it up and
returning it as designated by the building principal.
 
The organization requesting the equipment shall be liable for, indemnify and hold the Elkhart Community Schools harmless from loss and
expenses because of any and all damage or injury incurred by the use of such equipment. The organization shall also be required to provide a
certificate of insurance demonstrating that such insurance is in effect during the time of the use of such equipment.
 
The Elkhart Community Schools will not loan or allow the use of personal property, furniture and equipment, which place Elkhart Community
Schools in competition with local businesses, to persons or organizations other than those named above.



GDBA-10 

Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 
(as presented during the 10/8/2019 BST meeting) 

 

MISCELLANEOUS POSITION PAY SCHEDULE            

               SOURCE 

CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  

   

HIGH SCHOOL FOOTBALL: 

 

Event Supervisor     $50 per Event -  ECS Ed Fund 

 

Adult            

  Firemen    $30 per hour   ECS Ed Fund 

  Usher/Security    $50 per game   H.S. Ath. Dept 

  Ticket Sellers/Takers   $27 per game    " 

  Public Address Announcer  $15 per game    " 

    * Crowd Supervision Manager  1/2 of Master Contract Rate ECS Ed Fund 

  Fan Bus Supervision   $15 + 2 Tickets per Trip  H.S. Ath. Dept. 

  Parking Director   $17 per hour   ECS Ed Fund 

  Parking Attendant   $15per hour    " 

 

HIGH SCHOOL BASKETBALL 

(Games @ N.S. and Tournament)  

 

Event Supervisor     $50 per event             ECS Ed Fund 

Tournament Supervisor     $100 per event             ECS Ed Fund 

 

Adult            

  Firemen    $30 per hour   ECS Ed Fund 

  Usher/Security    $50 per regular game  H.S. Ath. Dept 

       $25 per tournament session  " 

  Ticket Sellers/Takers   $27 per session    " 

  Timers/Scorers    $10 JV game    " 

       $15 Varsity game   " 

       $25 per tournament session  " 

  PA Announcer    $15 per session    " 

       * Crowd Supervision Manager  1/2 of Master Contract Rate ECS Ed Fund 

  Fan Bus Supervision   $15 + 2 Tickets per trip  H.S. Ath. Dept. 

  Parking Director   $17 per hour-regular game ECS Ed Fund 

       $17 per hour-tournament session  " 

  Parking Attendant   $12 per hour-regular game  " 

       $12 per hour-tournament session  " 

 

Student 

  Usher/Security    $7.25 + Ticket per regular game H.S. Ath. Dept. 

       $7.25 + Ticket per tournament session " 

  Ticket Takers    $10 per session    " 

  Cloakroom Attendant   $7.25 per regular game   " 

       $7.25 per tournament session  " 

 

 

 



Page 2 GDBA-10 

Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule Administrative Regulation 

 
           

             SOURCE 

CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  

 

HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETICS: 

 

  Event Supervisor  

 Volleyball 

 Varsity/JV    $50 per event   ECS Ed Fund 

 Freshmen    $30 per event    " 

 Freshmen 3-way   $50 per event    " 

 4 team or less tourney  $50 per event    " 

 5 teams or more tourney  $100 per event    " 

  Soccer  

 Reg. season varsity & JV  $50 per event    " 

 Tournament    $100 per event    " 

  Swimming 

 Reg. season meet   $50 per event    " 

 All day tournament   $100 per event    " 

 Diving only    $50 per event    " 

  Wrestling 

 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 

 Super dual meet   $100 per event    " 

  Gymnastics 

 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 

 Invitational    $100 per event    " 

  Baseball/Softball 

 Varsity/JV    $50 per event    " 

 Freshmen    $50 per event    " 

 Tournament 4 teams   $100 per event    " 

 Tournament 5+ teams  $100 per event    " 

  Track 

 Dual or triangular meet  $50 per event    " 

 Invitational    $100 per event    " 

 

NON-ATHLETIC EVENTS (ECS RENTALS, MISCELLANEOUS ASSIGNMENTS): 

 

Adult 

  Electronic Technical Service Mgr. $14.50 per hour   ECS Ed Fund 

       * Building Rental Manager  $14.50 per hour  (per Teachers Contract) " 

  Police/Firemen    $30 per hour    " 

  Swimming Pool Manager  $15 per hour    " 

  Swimming Pool Lifeguard (Certified) $7.25 per hour    " 

  Security    $10 per hour    " 

  Usher     $8 per event    "  

  Ticket Seller/Taker   $12 per event    " 

  Parking Director   $17 per hour    " 

 

 



Page 3 GDBA-10 

Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule Administrative Regulation 

 
 

               SOURCE 

CLASSIFICATION POSITION   AMOUNT   OF PAYMENT  

 

Parking Attendant   $15 per hour    " 

  Substitute Custodian   $12.19 per hour    " 

       * Intramurals    $7.25 per hour    " 

  Food Service Sub   $9.68 per hour       Food Service Fund 

  Food Service Sub (retired  $12.01 per hour     “ 

  Food Service employee) 

  Food Service Driver Sub   $15.75 per hour    “ 

 

 

Student 

  Stage Hand/Music Helper  $7.25 per hour   ECS Ed Fund 

  Swimming Pool Lifeguard  current minimum wage   " 

  Usher     $7.25 per event    "  

  Ticket Taker    $8 per event    " 

  Cloakroom Attendant   $7.25 per event    " 

 

 

   

In the event the federally established minimum wage exceeds the hourly rate set forth under this regulation, 

the minimum wage shall apply. 

 

 

 

*  Negotiated Rates  

  

 

May 14, 2019October 22, 2019 



































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  October 22, 2019 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2019-20 school year: 

 

Tricia Davis    West Side/Math 

 

Martin Mullins   Career Center/Law Enforcement 

 

Eliza Stoltzfus    Beardsley/Grade 4 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Anthony Gouin   Career Center/Machine Trades 

Began:  9/10/18    Resign:  11/8/19 

 

Jeffrey Hemmerlein   Memorial/Language Arts 

Began:  8/19/02    Resign:  11/1/19 

 

Clare Palenchar   West Side/Language Arts 

Began:  8/14/18    Resign:  10/11/19 

 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Izamar Garcia    Pierre Moran/ENL 

Begin: 11/26/19   End:  6/3/20 

 

 

 

 
CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Christina Arranaga   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/16/19    PE: 10/11/19 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Madison Bartley   Central/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Betty Beadin    Daly/Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Brandy Bohm    Osolo/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Clara Bonds    Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 8/19/19    PE: 10/14/19 

 

Amber Delgado   Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 8/19/19    PE: 10/14/19 

 

Estrella Diaz    West Side/Secretary 

Began: 8/14/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Elizabeth Fair    Eastwood/Food Service 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Jessica Fortoso    Hawthorne/Bldng Translator/Parent Liaison 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Katherine Gilpin   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Gearlene Griffin   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/27/19    PE: 10/22/19 

 

Luella Hanks    North Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/19/19    PE: 10/14/19 

 

Megan Hartman   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Donya Hill    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

April Kiefer    Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/19    PE: 10/11/19 

 

Deanna Kohr    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/16/19    PE: 10/11/19 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Cheyenne Magyar   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Lois Mason    Pierre Moran/Secretary 

Began: 8/26/19    PE: 10/21/19 

 

Donna Moore    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Patricia Mosher   Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Vilma Ortiz de Carroccio  Central/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Carla Raeder    North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/9/19 

 

Shawanie Riley   Pinewood/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/19    PE: 10/22/19 

 

Kristina Roberts   Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

Began:  8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Tiffany Smart    West Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Jena Swain    Pierre Moran/Technical Assistant 

Began: 8/27/19    PE: 10/22/19 

 

Tona Vanover    Central/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

Heidi Vrielynck   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/15/19    PE: 10/10/19 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Nichole Houser   Riverview/Food Service 

Began: 8/20/12    Resign: 10/23/19 

 

Michelle Masten   Pierre Moran/Registered Nurse 

Began: 9/4/18    Resign: 10/31/19 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees:   

 

Constance Barber   North Side/Custodian  

Began: 5/30/89    Retire: 2/1/20 

     YOS: 30 

 

Patricia Sellers    ECS/Secretary 

Began: 3/13/01    Retire: 1/3/20 

     YOS: 18 

 

d. Unpaid Leave Request – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employees: 

 

Yvonne Gefri    North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/12/19    End: 1/3/20 

 

Donna Johnson   Riverview/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/10/19   End: 11/8/19 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session October 8 2019
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - October 8, 2019
	Gift Acceptance - ECS Athletic Facilities
	Gift Acceptance - ETI
	Gift Acceptance - Hawthorne
	Gift Acceptance - MHS Athletic
	Gift Acceptance - PMMS
	Balance Sheet - September
	Budget Resolutions
	Resolution for Appropriations
	Extra Curricular Purchase Request
	Fundraisers
	Monthly Insurance Report
	Recommendation for Award
	Board Policy 7510
	Administrative Regulation GDBA-10
	ETA Contract Memo
	Grants
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

